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Located on the northeast corner of East Main and Court streets in Buena Vista, the
Chaffee County Courthouse and Jail Building Complex consists of two structures
that reflect the Ttalian Villa style of architecture. Both buildings lie in close
proximity to ome another. The larger structure, the Courthouse, faces south to-
ward East Main, while the much smaller Jail lies to the west along Court Street.

The Courthouse is a single detached structure made of brick set in courses of
stretcher bond over a foundation of coursed ashlar. The building has two stories.
The main or south facade has five bays as do both the east and west sides, but on
the north is a one-story, rectangular wing added sometime after the original con-
struction; it has a somewhat different architectural style and is rather unobtru-
sive, yet it has converted what was a square structure into a rectangular one.

The south, east, and west facades all have a projecting central bay topped by a
pediment with a decorated tympanum. The structure has a low hipped roof topped
in the center by a sexagonal cupola.

The secondary elements give the Courthouse its distinctive architectural character.
The tall, narrow windows are all two-sashed and double-hung, those on the pro-
jections being clustered in twos and threes. The openings on the first story are
flat and decorated with a flat label; those on the second story are segmental and
decorated with a segmental label. All the windows have lugsills. The main door-
way also has a segmental label which lies above the architrave with a transom and
double-leafed door. All the building corners including those of the projections
are graced with quoins. At the roof line the eaves display a cornice that is
boxed with frieze, and consoles. The cupola is topped by a weathervame.

The Jail reflects the same primary and secondary architectural features of the
Courthouse, but is nonetheless a much smaller, less elaborate building. It has
two stories and has three bays in each of the south (main), east, and west sides.
Like the Courthouse, it has a one-story wing projecting from the north facade.
This addition has five bays on both the east and west sides, none on the north,
but it converts an essentially square building into a rectangular one. The
fenestration and decorative elements are similar to but much less elaborate than
those of the Courthouse—-there are no projectionms, quoins, or pediments, and some
windows are bricked and barred. This structure also has a low, hipped roof, one
topped by a square open walk with an iron rail instead of a cupola.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built in the early 1880s, the Chaffee County Courthouse and Jail Complex is signifi-
cant for its roles in law, politics, government, and education, It is also signifi-
cant for its architectural features which reflect the Italian Villa style, here

applied to a public building.

The events that brought the Complex into being began in 1880 when the state legisla-
ture created Chaffee County out of Lake County, site of the great mining camp of
Leadville. At first, Chaffee County had its seat and court in Granite, a few miles
north of Buena Vista, but late in 1880 the voters decided to award Buena Vista the
right to have the permanent county seat. Granite, however, was reluctant to abide
by the decision of the electorate, but on a night in 1881 some men from Buena Vista
stole into Granite under cover of darkness and with an engine and flatcar spirited
the county records to Buena Vista. With the town now established as the county
seat, the commissioners contracted with a Mr. E. Fisher to erect a suitable court-
house and jail. Fisher was experienced in this work, having built a courthouse in
Canon City for Fremont County. Why he selected this particular architectural style
remains unknown, but in 1882 he completed both structures at the cost of $50,000

for the Courthouse , $15,000 for the Jail.

From this time forward, the Complex played a large role in Buena Vista. For many
years the structures housed the county records, served as the seat of county govern-
ment, and administered justice in civil and criminal cases. 1In 1928, however, the
voters decided to remove the county seat to Salida, and after this, the Complex
remained closed for some years, but when the local school district needed more space
in a time of growing enrollment, it used the Courthouse for classes until new
schools could be built. The buildings in the Complex then stood abandoned until

the local citizenry decided to convert them into a museum and space for local

meetings.

From an architectural perspective the Courthouse and Jail Complex reflects the char-
acteristic elements of the Italian Villa style, most often applied to houses, but
sometimes to public buildings. The cupola, quoins, hipped roof, bracketed eaves,
pediments, and round-headed windows sometimes grouped in twos and threes are all
features of this style and can be readily seen in the Courthouse and to a lesser
extent in the Jail. This style had its American origins in the late 1830s and re-
mained popular for some time thereafter, but as the Complex in Buena Vista was not
erected until the 1880s, it suggests that the architect/builder Fisher or perhaps
the county commissioners may well have designed the buildings on the basis of ex-
amples he or they had seen in the East many years before. In any event the build- .
ings in the Complex reflect the slow penetration of older architectural ideas into
an area that in the early 1880s was both newly settled and relatively isolated.
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A tract of land located in the unplatted portion of the Town of Buena Vista,
Chaffee County, Colorado, known as Courthouse Square, being described as follows:
Beginning at the intersection of the northerly boundary of Main Street and the
easterly boundary of Court Street in the Town of Buena Vista; thence North 20°
35" 00" West 129.72 feet along the easterly boundary of Court Street; thence
North 69° 29' 24" East 117.05 feet; thence South 20° 35' 00" East 129.57 feet to
a point on the northerly boundary of Main Street; thence South 69° 25' 00" 117.05
feet along said boundary to the point of beginning, containing 0.34 acres, in-
cluding building and improvements.



